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2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2003  
1/21/2019 
JOB 31086 

 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Alice Delzer  / Florence Mayer 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the attorney 
general.  
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Office of Attorney General Booklet and power 
point presentation.  

 
Chairman Holmberg: Called the Committee to order on SB 2003 at 9:00 am.  Roll call was 
taken. All committee members were present. Becky J. Keller, OMB and Levi Kinnischtzke, 
Legislative Council were also present. Becky Deichert, OMB came in during the hearing.  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: Testified in favor of SB 2003 for the Office of the Attorney 
General (OAG) and provided Attachment # 1, a booklet which contains a summary of the 
accomplishments and responsibilities of his office, different departments in his office, the 
office appropriation requests and budget needs. This was a power point presentation as well 
as written testimony He stated he appreciates the opportunity to come before the 
appropriation committee and appreciates all they have done for his department through his 
ten years that he has been the attorney general and that he is here to address the budget for 
his office. He introduced members of his staff and their positions that they hold in his office. 
He began his testimony stating that the biggest division is the BCI division which is listed on 
pages 2-4 of Attachment # 1. Also invited the committee/subcommittee to tour the crime lab 
facilities.              
           
(14:12) Chairman Holmberg: The subcommittee members are: Senator Sorvaag. Chair.; 
Senator Bekkedahl and Senator Mathern.   
 
 Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: Continued with testimony on page 2 and PowerPoint 
page 6.  
 
(20:47) Senator Grabinger: We have talked in other committees regarding fingerprinting 
and background checks for these people trying to work in daycare facilities. One of the 
complaints I’ve heard is, by the time they get the background check done the person has 
gone on and found a different job. Why is there a lag time and what is it? Are we correcting 
it?   
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Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: We are. I met with DHS over a huge issue with that. A 
number of places are having problems, especially up in Grand Forks. This is a result of the 
change in federal regulations, that require you can’t put someone on staff while you’re waiting 
for the background check to be done. In the meantime, the feds are going to let us continue 
with the old way. Our turn-around time is the same now as it always has been. We are done 
in 7-10 days. Part of the problem is getting in locally to have someone to take the fingerprints 
and get them in to us. My understanding is that the problem has been alleviated.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Isn’t that a waiver that expires at some point?  That was confirmed.  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: We are certainly available to assist though my office. I 
don’t know how we’d get below 7-10 days. But we will certainly do everything we can. I 
understand it makes it much more difficult in the daycare situations.   
 
Senator Bekkedahl: My experience with USA Hockey, is we’ve done a lot of background 
checks for our volunteers, as have a lot of sports organizations done nationally. We started 
with just state background checks, now federal. Do you also shepherd those through that 
system? Do both applications go through you? 
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem:  Yes, if you want a state background check, what you get 
is info about convictions and the record within ND, you don’t get the fingerprint base federally. 
The federal system is far better and is finger print based, so you cannot falsely claim to be 
someone who you are not, a little more expensive but better.  
 
(24:00) Senator Wanzek: With the new farm bill, it had been approved that producers can 
grow hemp. I see every grower is going to be background checked. Will that put more stress 
on the process? I don’t know how many growers there might be. 
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: There are several bills we are tracking. It takes one 
person for every 2,000 background checks. We will make sure we have adequate staff for 
that.     
He continued with page 3 of testimony, (section on sex offenders). Pages 9-14 of PowerPoint.  
 
(29:58) Heidi Smith, CJIS Manager for the Attorney General’s Office: PowerPoint pages 
18-21. This is the Assertion Search and Notification mockup. Place where victims can go for 
everything. In the form of a button that can be put on any agencies website. When they click 
on it, it will take them to the login page. They will either create an account or create a new 
one. Gives them an online form of how they can assert their rights. On the flip side victim 
witness coordinators will be able to log in and see what has been asserted. There’s also a 
mechanism for them to update or edit any of their information.  
 
(32:07) Senator Dever: I got the impression this is for agencies to fill out. So do citizens not 
fill it out, but can access it?  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: This is for citizens to use. That page talking about state 
agencies, they can put that notification page on their own website if they want to. This is for 
the victims to assert their own rights, get notifications of their own claims.  We are moving 
along smartly, it takes time and money.  
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(33:24) Senator Robinson: Can we back up for just a minute. Regarding sexual offenders, 
what type of rates are we looking at when it comes to recidivism. Are we making progress in 
that area? A few years ago we were told there’s no cure, no hope, and when we look at the 
map the numbers are significant. What can you tell us about our efforts in that area? 
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: That’s hard for me to say. Maybe the folks at DOCR are 
better to answer or I can attempt to get that info for you. I don’t’ know what the results are off 
the top of my head. I know we have about 1,100 people on our sex offender website. That 
has been fairly consistent. With the recidivism, I am not the one who can answer that 
question.    
 
Continued with his testimony, page 3-4 with the BCI Case stories.  
Passed around vials of how much fentanyl people use versus how much can kill you.  

 Civil Litigation & Natural Resources: beginning on page 5 
 
(44:21) Senator Bekkedahl: Are you getting any questions from the public about post 
production deductions? If you are, are you participating in any conversations with state 
agencies about that? Clarification, royalty deductions for post-production costs for 
transporting and compressing and moving product.  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: The state land board in its lease, says that the taxes to 
be paid to the state of ND are to be paid without deductions of any other expenses. So it’s a 
gross production tax. Yes, I’m familiar with it, because we’ve been sued by 2 different 
companies. It’s our job to enforce the lease.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl:  Are you getting inquiries from the general public on those deductions 
as it relates to their leases at this point?  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: Their own private leases, no. We haven’t because it’s 
largely the state that owns more land and is in a better bargaining position than the average 
person. I don’t think that most leases from private individuals include a clause like that. I’m 
not aware that that has been an issue. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I only ask because we get the inquiries, as local legislators, about the 
issue. Didn’t know if you were getting them as well.  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: Not from individual land owners. I assume we will get a 
resolution to that soon. There might also be legislation introduced to deal with that topic going 
forward. Any more questions on Waters of the U.S.?  We care about our water in ND as 
much as, if not more, than EPA and Washington D.C.   
Continued on testimony page 7-9 
 
(50:15) Senator Mathern: We have a bill before us regarding the facilities at the state 
hospital. What is your sense of the lawsuit you’re dealing with in terms of sexual offenders? 
Is there merit to the lawsuit, maybe that population will go down considerable, or is that 
unclear?   
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Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: I think we have a valid defense to this litigation. Other 
states have made similar claims, some have lost. In ND people do go through a treatment 
program and they have been released. They have due process rights; they have a right to a 
hearing. We think our claim is pretty good and are confident it will withstand the challenge.  
 
Senator Mathern: I remember the first case we worked on with the Attorney General at that 
time. You were on Human Services or Judiciary with me. I was just wondering, is that 
individual still in the treatment program? 
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem:  Not sure who you’re talking about. I don’t know what the 
status of the individual is. I do recall working on it. It was a tough call because you’re putting 
people into a long term treatment program, not based on only what they did but what you 
think they might do in the future. One of the most compelling arguments we had was one of 
the individuals who was about to be committed, said “You should commit me, because I can 
guarantee you that if you don’t, I will offend again.”    
 
Senator Grabinger: I just had a conversation with one of our employees in DHS who works 
with sex offenders. I was told we have sex offenders who are not finding a place to go to, 
they are now being housed in the state hospital with the mentally ill? There’s 6-15 former sex 
offender patients who are being housed there because they aren’t getting out. Is that true? 
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: I don’t know. It is hard once they get out to find a place. 
Not just in that high intensity program, but sex offenders from the State Penn to find a place 
to get out. One thing research has shown is you’re much better off if you get these folks out, 
get them a place to live and a job.  Eventually they should all be getting out, they would be 
less likely to reoffend if they have stability in life. Continued with testimony regarding cases 
they are dealing with page 9-12.  
 
(58:31) Senator Gary Lee: Back to NAWS for a moment. Missouri is awaiting a decision, or 
is there further litigation that needs to go on with that water project?  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: There is further litigation, I can get an update to you.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Relative to the open records request, is there a reason that those can 
be done in anonymity to the local entities? Does that have to do with the whistle blower 
statute? 
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: Nothing to do with the whistle blower statute. Just has to 
do with the way the statute is written. Anyone can ask and not have to tell us who they are 
or why they want to know. That’s not an issue that has been big. We get some anonymous 
ones, but also ones that ask for massive amounts of information.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I understand in the whistle blower status, why it might be important to 
have that ability. But then there may be cases of local harassment. There’s a fine line there, 
and I don’t want to take it away from people. Just want to make sure it’s not being used in 
that way as well.    
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Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: That was the reason for the changes las session. If 
there’s a request that is determined to be harassment and it interferes with the actual 
operation of the government, the request can be denied. We do get some serial complainers.  
There are legitimate requests, and then there are some who are only trying to harass the 
local officials.   
 
Senator Robinson: Your office has been in the paper on the issue of “robo calls”, where 
lately it’s been crazy. Where are we at with that whole issue and who’s jurisdiction is that?  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: This is a great question, because I can’t go anywhere 
without someone raising that issue. It is the largest complaint by far. The answer, is much 
more difficult than you might think. If I had the answer, we would be doing it. Here’s what we 
have done, and what we continue to work on. The Federal Trade Commission and the 
Federal Communications Commission, took the position that the telephone companies and 
internet service providers, they’re like the post office. If you put a letter in the mail, then you 
have to deliver it. We sent a memo to the FDC and FCC. We said we thought they weren’t 
reading this right. You are not obligated to put through every phone call when they come 
from numbers you know are spoofed, numbers that have never been assigned to anybody, 
or numbers that have been pirated from someone else. They finally agreed that they would 
interpret the law that way. It is a federal issue. We have spent many, many hours working on 
this. They almost always come from somewhere we don’t have extradition treaties. Like 
Nigeria or the Bahamas. Technology is part of the answer; the federal government needs to 
be involved. I am hopeful the federal government would do a better job. People are saying 
they don’t even answer their phones because they assume it will be a “robo call”. We need 
to work with our federal counter parts, because that’s where the real answer lies. People 
think the technology exists to stop them, and I wish it did. These calls would not be made if 
the people didn’t fall for the scams. They would quit doing them if they weren’t lucrative. I 
have so many stories of victims of people in ND who fall for these things.  
 
(1:06:22) Senator Grabinger: I was down at the NCSL Convention back in December. We 
had a meeting on this. The FTC and FCC were there. It is their belief, because the question 
came up about how bad this was affecting some of the people. Most is across state lines, if 
not international lines. The ability for local law enforcement to do anything other than tell 
people not to fall for it. We have to take the next step. They are talking about a national task 
force that would bring all the different organizations together to combat this. We need to 
come together in a serious effort that can cross international borders and collect these guys 
to end this.  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: Couldn’t agree more. There is federal legislation coming 
through, designed to coordinate these things. The biggest problem we have, is finding them. 
And finding them in a place where we could bring a litigation against them. We could pay for 
an operation to stop it, if we could only find where they are.      
 
Senator Grabinger: If the Federal Government gets involved and goes after these guys 
internationally. We can put sanctions on their country, if they don’t take action. Of which state 
and local people don’t have the ability to do. 
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Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: I think I’d be the most popular guy in ND if I could figure 
out a way to deal with this problem. People are fed up, and I can see why. Even the phone 
in my car gets them, and I don’t even use it. It has gotten beyond control.  We’ve come a 
long way in consumer protection. When I started in this area consumer protection dealt with 
vacuum cleaner sales men and door to door magazine salesmen. Now it’s all internet scams. 
People are losing thousands and thousands of dollars.    
 
(1:09:34) V. Chairman Krebsbach: One of the more interesting calls I’ve gotten on a “robo 
call”, came from the ND Attorney General Office.   
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: That is exactly right, of course it was spoofed. It did not 
come from us. Those are the ones where you get outraged citizens, their own phone numbers 
have been hijacked by these scammers.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Back to the budget. 
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: I want to take a few minutes about the crime lab. Pages 
12 – 13.  And pages 26-27. One of the asks is an additional DNA Analyst.  
 
(1:18:09) Senator Robinson: A number of your people have specialized training, many are 
probably in demand in the private sector. What are you experiencing in retention and 
recruitment?  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem:  These are difficult positions to fill because they are in 
demand. Which gets me into my final ask, I know you’ll be contending with pay raises for all 
our folks. We like the 4 and 2 and 2 that has come forward. Another thing important to 
recruitment is fully paid family medical insurance. It is one of the best arrangements we have 
in this state. Retirement is good, vacation time is pretty decent, but the fully paid family 
insurance is a big deal. Last session I know we weren’t able to give raises to anybody as a 
result of the budget problem. But you did keep the insurance. I asked staff which they’d rather 
have, a raise or the insurance. Everyone said insurance.  
We regulate the gaming division, page 14. You authorized the use of the electronic pull tab 
dispensing devices. They are more popular than I ever expected. There are 12,044 of those 
across the state. As a result of that, we think in the next biennium the amount that is wagered 
will exceed a billion dollars. That will result in additional money for the charities, but additional 
work for all of us in the gaming division.  
 
(1:21:07) Senator Sorvaag: On that, I heard some complaints about your book keeping? 
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: The problem is that we don’t have the software and tech 
to upload all the info we get from those electronic devices. The charities have to do it, but on 
paper and send it into us. We then assemble all that info, on paper as well. Computer 
programs exist so we can fix that, that will make the charities and the gaming division happy. 
The price tag on that is $400,000. I’m not sure what the timeline is to get that up and running.  
He referred to someone behind him, that said, if we get the appropriation for the funding that 
within 6 months to a year, we can have much or all of running. We hear the same complaints.   
Fire Marshal is here with us, page 15-16. 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
SB 2003 Atty. General  
01-21-2019 
Page 7  
   

Medicaid Fraud Control Unit exemption is at an end. With this, it’s in the office of the Attorney 
General. Feds pay 90% initially then 75%. Then you get a take of whatever you collect. If you 
decide it’s time to do that, we would be happy to do so. I don’t know where that is in the 
process. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: It is on the green sheet.   
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: We are the only state in the country that has been 
operated with this exemption for many years. Now I understand that’s the end of it. We will 
do what you tell us. 
 
(1:25:28) Senator Sorvaag: The last session, there was more than just putting it in your 
budget. Are those bills out there to implement it? We were told it’s irrelevant to put them in 
there if we don’t do all the other lines.  
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: That’s the false claims act I’m talking about. There’s a bill 
that kind of touches on it. I think its HB1455, that would need a lot of tweaking if you decided 
there needs to be a Medicaid Fraud Control Unit in ND. Just setting up the unit without any 
statute to implement it, won’t do any of us any good. We have to have both.  
 
Becky Deichert, OMB:  Senator Roers will be putting a bill in in regards to the policy piece 
of this. Not positive it will cover all the issues, but it is in the works.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: So it would get a hearing in a policy committee before it would come 
here.  

 
*Short break for the Committee* 
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: One other issue, they have a program for SSDI. They 
invited us to participate. I said we would at least present it for the committee’s consideration, 
so you are aware of it.   
 
(1:28:22) Lonnie Grabowska, Director of Bureau of Criminal Investigation (BCI): Social 
Security Administration approached us about creating a cooperative disability investigative 
unit. This unit would take law enforcement from the federal and state level, along with criminal 
analysts and social security administration disability personnel. The primary goal is the 
prevention of the fraud of Social Security under title 2 and title 16. Would affect the 
supplement nutrition assistance program (SNAP), temporary assistance for needy families 
(TANIF), housing benefits, food stamps, and the WIC program. It looks at the new applicants 
for those benefits, and those who would have post entitled benefits. 100% federally funded in 
the state. A ND unit would consist of 8 individuals, 6 would be from ND.  
 
(1:30:25) Senator Sorvaag: When you are saying the federal government, they are funding 
everything? No cost to the states at all? 
 
Lonnie Grabowska:  That is correct.  Includes salaries, benefits for the people, vehicles, 
training, travel, rent, every operational expense comes through the Social Security 
administration.  
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Senator Mathern: Does this dovetail with Medicaid fraud unit someway? So we don’t 
duplicate those efforts.   
 
Lonnie Grabowska:  I would believe the units would be very similarly, but they are on 
opposite spectrums and different groups they focus on. But yes, that idea of that federal task 
force is extremely similar. 
 
Senator Mathern: Seems strange we have it all figure out how to go after these individuals. 
But we don’t’ have it figured out how to go after the institutions, where the amount of fraud is 
dramatically higher.   
 
Lonnie Grabowska: That is a great point. Under the Medicaid Fraud Unity, it goes after the 
provider instead of the benefit. In this case it doubles both. We’d be able to look at those who 
are assisting in the social security fraud or also those who are currently receiving the benefits. 
Most units do not look at the post entitlement on the social security, but these units by SSA 
guidelines have expanded to cover both.   
 
Atty. General Wayne Stenehjem: That concludes what I have. Unless you wish to go 
through the entire appropriation. Or we can have the subcommittee go through it with Kathy 
and the rest of my office.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Are their people in the audience that want to offer more testimony on 
the budget. Anyone else? Forensic Nurse Examiners program comes at 2pm. 11:00am is 
human trafficking. Session might be a little longer today. Let us have Kathy give us a 10-
minute overview of the budget section.   
 
Kathy Roll, Director, Finance and Administration Division, Atty. General Office: Will go 
through the yellow booklet: 
Page 21-22: status of 2017-2019 biennium 1 time appropriations.  
Page 23: 10% general fund reductions required. (5.17M). 
Page 24: summary of the executive recommendation. 
Page 25-27: adjustments requested to the governor. 
 
(1:38:18) Senator Sorvaag: You’re requesting to stay the same, without talking about the 
Medicaid fraud people. The governor cut you down, but you’re requesting the same number 
of employees as before plus the Medicaid fraud? 
 
Kathy Roll: There are some positions we are not requesting to have restored.   
 
Senator Sorvaag: But you’re replacing them with others.  
 
Kathy Roll: Without the Medicaid Fraud Unit our FTE’s have gone down. We are also asking 
for the DNA forensic scientist.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: But 26-27, all those items listed are included in the budget the governor 
sent us?   
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Kathy Roll: That is correct.  
On page 28: request to restore a forensic scientist to the office budget.  
Page 29-30:  shows legislative bills having a fiscal impact on the office of Attorney General.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: One of the things for the subcommittee with our new green format, is 
to make sure nothing that was recommended by the government is not at least part of our 
discussion. There are things we probably won’t accept, but we want to make sure nothing 
falls through the cracks. I understand the bill Senator Roers is putting in, will be the nucleus 
for the fraud unit. That will have a policy hearing, which is appropriate. Is there other portions 
that will have fallen through the cracks.  
 
Kathy Roll:  The information we provided has that information. Unless there are other bills 
introduced.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB  2003.     
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A Subcommittee hearing for the office of the Attorney General  
 

Minutes:                                                 No testimony submitted  

 
Senator Sorvaag: Called the Subcommittee to order on SB 2003 at 11:30 am in the Harvest 
Room.  All committee members were present: Senator Sorvaag, Chair; Senator Bekkedahl 
and Senator Mathern.  Levi Kinnischtzke, Legislative Council and Becky Deichert, OMB were 
also present.    
 
Some of the other law suits that you decide to be a part of they do cause expenditures from 
the state. Do you make that determination? What is the procedure and how is it done?  
 
Wayne Stenehjem, ND Attorney General: The statute set forth the cases in which the 
attorney general needs to be involved, that is to prosecute all actions for the interest of the 
state of ND. If there is litigation that is considered in the state of ND, that decision is made 
by me ultimately. No one can bring a lawsuit except the Attorney General or someone 
appointed by him as an assistant.  The cases that work the way up to me are some of the 
more important cases. I ask questions about what the constitution says, what has the 
legislature said about their position on litigation, what do our client agencies say we should 
do. The attorney general is in charge of all litigation brought for the benefit of the state of ND 
 
Senator Sorvaag:  And if you don’t have enough money in a litigation fund you come for 
deviancies? 
 
Wayne Stenehjem: A lot of the lawsuits we handle are handled by attorneys already on staff 
in our office, so there is not an additional expenditure. But we have things like the Waters of 
the U.S., that was a significant case and we came to ask for money. We typically have a lot 
of cases on abortion, there’s no legal expense for us, but if you lose those cases you also 
are obligated to pay the legal fees for the other side. That is a situation that causes issues, 
and we have to come to the legislature to get appropriations.    
 
Senator Sorvaag: That is inflicted by us, that’s our own decision.   
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Wayne Stenehjem: That’s your decision, we defend them and if we succeed that is fine. But 
if we fail and wind up under a federal statute required to pay the attorney’s fees for the other 
side, that’s an expense to the state of ND.   
 
Senator Sorvaag: I understand. The question was more directed, like the water thing, where 
you choose to go in or not.  
 
Wayne Stenehjem: In all those major cases, ultimately it is the decision of the Attorney 
General to pursue those or not. In every case I can think of I think of the good of multiple 
parties involved.  
 
(5:29) Senator Bekkedahl: There’s no particular line item in your budget that delineates this 
much money for legal activities, outside of what we’ve already given you.  
 
Wayne Stenehjem: There’s a litigation fund that is established, that provides some of the 
expenses we occur. Some cases we have specifically appropriated money to defend a state 
statute. We can get that info for you.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl:  There Nelson M. lawsuits we’re dealing with, are those fees 
appropriated out of the Industrial Commission or state land board? 
 
Wayne Stenehjem:  That’s a complicated case, there are 3 defends. The land lord, the 
industrial commission, and the governor and I were all sued individually. The governor and I 
are being represented by the attorneys on staff in my office, we have outside council to 
represent the other 2 entities. I would have to find out for you where their fees are coming 
from.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Are there agencies that have individual council within their office do 
deal with some of these issues independent of your office? Or are they all guided by staff in 
your office? 
 
Wayne Stenehjem: They are usually guided by our staff, very few agencies have their own 
attorneys and not all of those are authorized to commence litigation. They have to be 
appointed by the Attorney general to do that.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: They may be acting in another capacity such as contract law that is 
independent of litigation?   
 
Wayne Stenehjem: There are a few agencies that have attorneys, but not many 
 
Senator Mathern: Do you have a list of actions that we are involved in? I know some go 
back many years. Is there supervision of the list? At what point do we have a decision making 
process? 
 
Wayne Stenehjem:  We do that regularly; I can get you a list of the litigation we are involved 
in. 
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Senator Mathern: Maybe just a list of those which we have outside council. Is that where 
we have more expenditures? 
 
Wayne Stenehjem: That is true. The state of ND, since we lost sovereign immunity, I get a 
report on those risk management cases every month. Some get settled, some we take to 
court. We can get that to you.  
 
Senator Mathern: On the human trafficking bills, we have a separate bill other than the one 
in your budget,   
 
Senator Sorvaag: SB 2159, it’s not part of the budget, that is the appropriation for human 
trafficking. I want your feeling on that and 2057. They’ve gone on 3 sessions with no change, 
you are going to need that. We want to move them into the budget as amendments, and just 
kill those bills. It’s time to make it part of the budget for every biennium.    
 
Wayne Stenehjem: That would be fine with me. That is not money that we expend, usually 
private providers.  It would be easier for us rather than another bill and having to testify twice.  
 
(11:55) Senator Mathern: If we were to move that into your department, where would it go? 
Would you have a separate line item or operations?   
 
Wayne Stenehjem: Kathy might be better to discuss that.  
 
Kathy Roll, Financial Director for Atty. General: It would be better if it had a special line 
item. Wouldn’t want it to be confused. I’d recommend special line items for sexual assault 
nurse one and human trafficking bills.    
 
Senator Sorvaag: It’s grant money, not really your operations? That was confirmed 
there is no end in sight, regretfully. There is a lot of support to make it line items.   
Was there anything else you wanted to address? I don’t think much has changed since last 
Monday with the budget. 
 
Wayne Stenehjem: We follow all those bills up to the end of the session.    
 
Senator Sorvaag:  I do want to talk about the BCI salaries. We did that bump up in ‘15. Did 
they get to keep that or did it get removed? 
 
Wayne Stenehjem:  They got the bump, then nothing happened last session. Still current. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: They got to keep the $10,000? Where are they at on salary now, 
comparatively?    
 
Wayne Stenehjem:  Local law enforcement agencies are paid more, but in better shape 
because of 2015. They really are the premier law enforcement and investigative agency of 
the state of ND. You don’t come out of the academy and come to work for BCI. You need 5 
years’ experience and then a vetting process. The recruitment isn’t as robust as we’d like to 
see. Salary is part of that. Another issue is the insurance. Pay attention to that.  
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(16:25) Senator Sorvaag: If this end up with 2,3,4% that will keep it competitive.  
 
Wayne Stenehjem: We understand; we are just here to explain the challenges we have.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl:  I am guessing; the need is in the northwest corner.  We have issues 
in the city and county fight for employees of that caliber all the time. We’ve increased our line 
officers’ salaries from 25,000 to the 65,000 start rate. I am guessing that is an issue. The 
labor market is tightening up again. The DOT and DHS in the existing budgets have been 
doing regional pay differential. We had that in 2015, that’s gone away to some degree. Are 
you able to do that now, do you see a need, and would it require an appropriation? 
 
Wayne Stenehjem: You are correct that a lot of the pressure was salary ranges in Western 
ND. We had to compete with that higher pay grade. Its not just in western ND. We did that in 
the beginning of the oil boom to offer more per month, now that went away.  I will check with 
the folks in our office if there has been a pay comparison discussion.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl:  The last one from OMB is 2016. Median house income in Williston is 
92,000 where in Fargo it’s a little over 50,000 a year. We have some real differences among 
our cities. I want to be sure you can compete with that market. That the services should 
remain in the area. Should the state be looking again at agency wide pay issues, and try to 
fix it in a lump sum like before. Or does it happen on an agency level with everyone asking 
for more appropriations? 
 
(19:48) Wayne Stenehjem: Let me check if there has been a recent salary survey for local 
law enforcement. The issue with salary is its system wide. We really do have the best, we 
are relied on by local law enforcement. A lot of people look at their law enforcement career 
with BCI as the pinnacle of their career. It’s something to be proud of.  We lose lawyers to 
the oil company too, so I understand you compete with private industry all the time. But to 
compete with other government agencies is a much more philosophical issue.  
 
Senator Mathern: I notice the request to enhance the SAVIN system by $500,000.  What is 
the life of that system? I’m afraid someday it might crash, are we prepared for that day?  
 
Wayne Stenehjem: We are, that’s why we ‘ve been asking for several sessions, not just for 
SAVIN. We are also continuing on the path with Criminal Justice Information Sharing System, 
(CJIS) That is a project ongoing for years. You’ve been approving that year by year. It’s a 
long term process, when complete will have one of the best systems for law enforcement.   
 
Senator Sorvaag: You had $400,00 for software to handle this electronic gambling? 
 
Wayne Stenehjem: Not in our budget, it’s in separate bills. One in the House and one in the 
Senate. It’s as much for the local charities as it is for our office. There is an enormous 
popularity of those pull tab machines. They have to enter that info by hand.    
 
Senator Sorvaag: It is one of the few complaints from small communities about your office. 
They say it’s a nightmare.  
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Wayne Stenehjem: It is, not only for the charities but our office too. The funding will do that 
when the system is up and running. So they just supply the info electronically. It eliminates 
the paper work on both ends.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Want to be clear on were the employees are going.  You started with 237, 
you’re ending up with 237, but we are adding in the Medicaid task force. You are sustaining 
BCI of 6, what are you losing?    
 
Wayne Stenehjem: We also asked for the DNA analyst. That’s the only addition.  
 
Kathy Roll: We are losing an attorney in civil litigation, losing an attorney in state local 
government division, losing a criminal records technician, losing a sex offender registry 
administrative assistant, and an administrative assistant in the civil litigation division.    
 
Senator Sorvaag: Your BCI are the same? That was confirmed.  
Then of course the Medicaid. The hearing was this morning. It would be nice to see that pass. 
Where does the number come from? Based on your judgement, the federal government or 
anticipated work load? 
 
Kathy Roll: The executive recommendation included 5 positions. We met with the SD fraud 
control, they recommended 7 positions. 2 attorneys, 2 investigators, 2 auditors and 1 
administrative assistant. That is what we would like to see.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Pretty much modeling SD then.  
 
Wayne Stenehjem: We surveyed states about the same size as ND, and looked at what 
they were doing.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: On the bottom of the first page you talk about the 6 FTEs removing, 
then adding the 5 FTEs for Medicaid Fraud, then adding 1 FTE Fire Marshall administrative 
assistant, adds funds for 1 previously unfunded.  I see 7 instead of 6.  
 
Kathy Roll:  The deputy fire marshal, we have the FTE but no funding. That would be from 
the operating fund.   
 
Wayne Stenehjem:  We are available, as you know.   
 
Senator Sorvagg: Not sure when we’ll meet again, will let you know.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I asked the question about the FTE that’s not funded. So you have 237 
FTEs now, you’ll stay at 237. How many are not occupied now? Or are they all? 
 
Kathy Roll: I believe it’s less than 5.   
 
Senator Bekkedahl: That’s just normal turn over, retirements, etc. That was confirmed.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Closed the subcommittee hearing on SB 2003.          
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Chairman Sorvaag called the sub-committee to order on SB 2003. Senators Bekkedahl and 
Mathern were also present. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: The bill says 7 FTEs. You want 7 FTEs but the Governor said 5 FTEs. 
You can’t explain the governor’s rationale, but I would like to hear yours. Please expand on 
that. 
 
Wayne Stenehjem, North Dakota State Attorney General 
 
Stenehjem: We had put in a request for 7, but when it came from the governor’s office it was 
5. I was not privy to that discussion. 
 
Lonnie Grabowska, BCI Deputy Director, Office of Attorney General 
 
Grabowska: As we looked at this Medicaid unit, we were forming a subcommittee as of last 
session, so those 3 bills for the false claims act, creation of the Medicaid fraud unit and the 
Medicaid fraud authority were combined into a mandatory study. We did that study with DHS 
and came back to Human Services subcommittee, at that time chaired by Representative 
Hogan now Senator Hogan. We testified to them saying that we went to the various states 
around us that were comparable such as Montana, South Dakota and Wyoming. We asked 
them how their units were currently made up with the amount of people they had. South 
Dakota has roughly 7-8 and the lead minimum was in Wyoming with 4. That is the minimum 
amount of people that Medicaid and Medicare services will support in a unit. We asked them 
and called other states to see what they would recommend for us. Out of that, we came up 
with the idea that the best unit to have is 7 individuals if you are going to the non-key tam or 
the non-whistleblower. If you do not have the whistleblower defense with the unit, then 7.  
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There would be 1 attorney doing the criminal prosecution and 1 attorney doing the civil 
recoveries. One of those attorneys will normally act as the coordinator for the unit and make 
sure we’re doing all of the reporting to Medicaid and Medicare services and then pick up a 
criminal load with the other attorney doing the civil load. There would be 2 investigators so 
you can run more than one case at a time; this way they can have a caseload of 7-8 each 
and the ability to spread across that requirement for the cases coming in. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: You assume that you will be running more than one case at a time? 
Did you see that workload in the other states around us? Why don’t you start with one 
investigator and see the need first? 
 
Lonnie Grabowksa: As the caseload comes in, as the referrals come from the Medicaid 
unity under DHS right now with the program integrity unit and the general public and clients 
coming in, I think our caseload will build quickly. I don’t think we’re going to ever have a time 
where we would say that one investigator will be enough. As those caseloads come in, they’re 
going to be time consuming, so the auditors will need to help us get those cases together, 
and the investigators will have to balance, I would assume, between 5-6 cases each as the 
unit develops. In the other states, the main recommendation they had for us was to not start 
with just one attorney, one auditor, one investigator and one admin staff because as soon as 
those cases come in, or as soon as someone’s gone with court, investigations or training, 
the case is stopped. There isn’t anything being done with those cases because that one 
person with that distinct responsibility is no longer available. 
 
Beyond those 2 attorneys and 2 investigators, there were 2 auditors. Those are the people 
who are going to leverage cases and help in some non-sworn investigative components. 
They’ll work with Medicaid and Medicare services, getting the information needed for the 
cases and do some of those auditor oriented duties when the criminal investigator is busy 
doing other things as far as the interviews and the case prep. Then 1 admin assistant in 
charge of the daily operations, making sure that the paperwork is being done and everyone 
is where they’re supposed to be. That is the reason for the 7 over the recommended 5 from 
the Governor’s office.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Let’s presume you need this many to stay busy and the workload is 
higher. I’m guessing it’s going to ebb and flow; there’s going to be years where you’re 
completely overwhelmed and others where you’re not going to be as busy. No one knows, 
but the same amount of people and the same size units aren’t going to commit fraud every 
year equally. How do you handle that? 
 
Stenehjem: The important thing to note is that these have to be stand-alone units. I think we 
can bring someone in to assist the unit, but I don’t think we can use somebody from this unit 
to do other work in our office because the law requires a stand-alone unit. We couldn’t take 
one of the lawyers and put them to work on some other case. However, if they get 
overwhelmed, we could take some of our other staff to supplement the work of the fraudulent.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: We’re hoping they don’t- that we don’t have that much fraud in North 
Dakota. 7 was the number last year when we amended bills into the budget but of course it 
didn’t make it. Was that 7 FTEs last session as well? 
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(8:20) Kathy Roll, Financial Administrator, Attorney General’s office 
 
Roll: I think it was 6 at that point. That was before the study was done with Human Services 
and surrounding like states. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: What position was added for this session? 
 
Grabowska: We didn’t have the extra auditor last time, but we added it this time. 
 
Senator Mathern: There already are investigations with fraud or questions that the 
Department of Human Services deals with without this special unit. Would this save any 
money for the Attorney General’s office or the Department of Human Services? Is the addition 
of 7 staff to a special unit going to relieve some other activities going on in government? 
 
Stenehjem: It wouldn’t in our office because we aren’t doing this. The feds for the first few 
years pay 90% of it. there’s also a share that we get of what is recovered, so it’s theoretically 
possible. I assume that that is what they’re intending- that it more than pays for itself. Then 
of course you’re bringing money back in when you detect that there is fraud going on. 
 
Senator Mathern: Isn’t some activity already being investigated? 
 
Grabowska: What happens currently is the DHS Medicaid program integrity unity looks at 
the recipient fraud. This would be on the provider fraud. If they see something currently that 
would qualify for this, they used to send it to local law enforcement who just didn’t do anything 
with it; they didn’t have that specialty and had many other cases backed up. They now send 
it to Kansas City to Health and Human Services office of inspector general. They take very 
limited amount of the cases out of North Dakota because they have much larger ones coming 
out of other sections of the country; they have very little follow up on the provider fraud. At 
that point, they just aren’t being investigated. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: This Medicaid fraud unit will deal solely with provider fraud cases and 
recipients will still go to local law enforcement? 
 
Grabowska: Yes, this is a provider fraud unit, but it could assist the Medicaid program 
integrity unit with some recipient fraud if they as for that assistance. The recipient fraud cases 
are not being forwarded to local law enforcement right now; they’re just falling pretty much 
on DHS’s bill.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: The state share is $181,000 with the 7 and $128,000 with the governor’s 
recommendation of 5 or something of that nature. Is that correct? That’s for the first 3 years 
that they pay 90%, then it switches to them paying 75% and we pay 25%. Presumably for 
the first 3 years it would be about $55-60,000 or more under your projected numbers going 
7 over 5 FTEs. 
Roll: Correct. That is about right. 
 
Senator Mathern: In light of the match that’s higher now than in future years, I think we 
should go with the 7 and utilize that time at the higher match rate to set up the systems, 
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protocols, processes and relationships. Hopefully that investment will pay off, and at some 
future point, we can reduce if need be. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: The goal is to be self-supporting if there’s enough fraud. I think we’ll wait 
because we hear the policy bill this afternoon. I presume it will get assigned to us because 
we have to tie the right employees to it before we can get it back to the floor. We’ll have more 
of that discussion later. 
 
Stenehjem: I think this is good policy, but this has never been a priority of my office. We 
have other things we worry about, and now it looks like we’re losing the federal exemption 
since we’re the only state that had one. That being the case, we’ll certainly do what is 
assigned to us, but we want to do it right too. That means that we need to have the staff that 
we think we need to do it right. If it gets established, the 90% is for 3 years so we’ll have two 
sessions to observe this and if we need to reduce it, we can look at it then. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: We have the human trafficking bills that we’re looking at tying in, but in 
the budget here it showed a $125,000 reduction for human trafficking grants.  
 
Roll: The $125,000 was for this biennium for human trafficking. It’s all that we received from 
the 2017 legislature and it was a one-time appropriation so we’ll have to take those out. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: So if we didn’t do the 1.5, you’d have 0 under the recommendation? 
Roll: Correct. 
 
(15:35) Troy Seibel, Chief Deputy Attorney General 
 
Seibel: The $125,000 was the general funds that we received, but we also received money 
from SIIF I believe. We received $825,000 total, but only $125,000 was general funds 
 
Roll: Only $125,000 was in the AG’s budget. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: But that $700,000 was one-time as well? If this was going out, then the 
only money would be that 1.5 as of now? 
 
Stenehjem: Correct. You asked us for some information last time. The first sheet you have 
is the beginning salaries for comparable law enforcement agencies (see attachment #1). It’s 
an issue just like Senator Bekkedahl was mentioning.  
Senator Bekkedahl: When I started on the City Commission 23 years ago, that starting 
salary for PD was $22,000 a year.  
 
Stenehjem: Our BCI agents need to have a minimum of a 5-year experience, so they’re not 
fresh out of the academy, so that’s what we have to compete with. The other handout is some 
of our significant litigation (see attachment #2). I also did a report on the risk management 
cases that we do because we lost sovereign immunity. I have all of those cases if you’re 
interested in that. There are hundreds of other cases that are relatively minor.  
Senator Sorvaag: We would like a tour of the crime lab sometime in the near future. 
 
Senator Sorvaag ends the discussion on SB 2003. 
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Chairman Sorvaag called the sub-committee to order on SB 2003.  Senator Bekkedahl and 
Senator Grabinger were also present.  
 
Levi Kinnischtzke handed out SB 2003 Base Level Funding Changes (see attachment #1) 
 
Senator Sorvaag: We’re going to walk through the sheet. 
 
Senator Grabinger: I had a visit with Senator Dever. From the Deficiency funds, we are 
eliminating that from the Adjutant General budget. We’re not going to make the payment in 
that budget, but there was $1M set aside for the interest. Since you were going to handle the 
lawsuit, we talked about taking that million dollars and transferring that over to your budget 
as well. However, after discussions, there’s no need to; we can leave it where it is and get it 
taken care of. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: We’re not going to move on everything, so if there’s any disagreement, 
we’ll set that item to the side and take a vote on it later. The first item that comes up is 
removing 6 FTEs. We’re matching the governor’s recommendation on that. I’m excluding the 
fraud unit. 
 
Kathy Roll, Financial Officer for Attorney General 
 
Roll: I wasn’t aware that all the other fund changes from the executive recommendation are 
also being made, that the Senate is accepting those as well. The governor required 10% of 
their fund reductions. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: This is with what he put back in. 
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Roll: Of theses 6 positions, there are 2 that are special funds that we don’t want to lose if we 
don’t have to. It’s an attorney and a paralegal. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: In my understanding, there was 12 or 13 and you want 2 more of those? 
 
Roll: Of the 6 that were cut, 2 are of them are from other funds. We would like to keep those 
because those are part of our legal staff, and we’ve already taken some cuts there. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: We’ll come back to that. Next would be the FTEs for the Medicaid fraud 
unit. The bill had 7, you wanted 7 and the governor recommended 5. We’re sitting with 5 on 
the sheet. I would like to suggest to the subcommittee that we go to 7 FTEs for the Medicaid 
fraud unit.  
 
Senator Grabinger: If we went with 5, how would that impact that fraud unit? Is it detrimental 
that we go to the 7? 
 
Wayne Stenehjem, ND Attorney General 
 
Stenehjem: We think it would be, but it’s hard to know because it’s a brand new thing for 
ND. We looked at South Dakota for comparison. The federal government now for the next 3 
years pays 90% of it. After that they go down to 75%. It seems like we can look at the staffing 
level when we actually experience a reduction in what the federal government will pay and 
what it is we’ve recouped and been able to keep in the state. 
 
Senator Grabinger: You don’t think starting with 5 to get the program off the ground is a 
good idea?  
 
Stenehjem: We’ll probably see things front-end loaded that we might have things that have 
been not looked into right away. It’s probably smarter to start out with more and then as things 
level off, look at going to a smaller number. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: We’ll go by consensus that it’s 7. The next item is adding one fire marshal 
administrative assistant.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: That’s the one position that you’re using an unfounded position there, 
correct?  
 
Roll: Actually that’s the next one on the list. There hasn’t been any administrative assistant 
at all; right now we’re using a temp. It’s the only support staff that division has. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: So it’s the fire marshal that is the unfunded position? 
 
Roll: Correct. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: It’s $756,664 for the lottery narcotics task force. Was there a request for 
more or was this always the amount? 
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Roll: This was the amount that we requested in our budget. It’s for multi-jurisdictional task 
forces. 
 
Stenehjem: It is an increase in the contribution from the lottery proceeds from what it has 
been. 
 
(8:20) Levi Kinnischtzke, Legislative Council 
 
Kinnischtzke: The amount you may be thinking of- if you look at the 2nd page of the long 
sheet that I handed out, underneath the Senate version section 7, there is a total of $1.6M.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Yes, that’s where I saw it. Reduced funding for lottery operating 
expenses- please expand on that. The governor took out $375,000 
 
Roll: That’s part of the 10% other fund reductions that we had to take out of lottery funds 
 
Senator Sorvaag: The human traffic grant program and the forensic nurse examiners are 
tied to SB 2159. I think there’s a consensus that we move this over to ongoing funding. That’s 
the intent of the subcommittee and the senate. It seems like the more appropriate way to 
handle it in the future. 
 
Stenehjem: We’re leveraging a lot of good support and services from private sector entities. 
 
Senator Grabinger: I think they’re both great programs. I’m wondering with the SANE 
program, how have we expanded that? In the western part of the state, we had a difficult time 
getting to the people that needed this service. Have we been able to expand it? $250,000 is 
what we put in there. Is that appropriate to do the job that we’re trying to do? 
 
Tisha Sauer, Executive Director of the Central Dakota Forensic Nurse Examiners 
 
Sauer: Well more is always better of course. I have a team hired in Williston, Dickenson, 
Minot and Bismarck and I’m working on Watford City, so all of western North Dakota is 
currently covered. We also cover Sidney, Montana; they bring their cases to us as well. We 
cover 24/7 7 days a week children and adults. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: The only thing that wasn’t on your list is the last item “charitable gaming 
technology system” for $400,000. I added that. Most of my people running the electronic 
gaming are not very happy because of the system of record keeping; it’s cumbersome and 
generating a lot of money. There was a bill on our side that set up the fund and it died. There 
is a bill still alive on the House side, but we don’t know how that will go. My intent was we 
just put the $400,000 in now. We’ll worry about how it ends up being placed or funded later. 
I wanted it one-time so you can set it up and we can negotiate later. 
 
Senator Grabinger: I’m fine with that. I was going to ask about the $300,000 in general fund 
monies for the undercover vehicles. We have a lot of cars in the state that are in fleet. Can 
you use some of them? 
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Stenehjem: They have to have their own cars. We’ve fallen behind on it; there is a schedule 
for replacing these vehicles. This won’t replace them pursuant to what the schedule that the 
state had of when vehicles should be replaced, but this is enough for 12. We have 50 agents 
with a car each. We’re still going to be off the schedule, but this will help. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: Did we replace any last session? The session before last I think. 
 
Roll: Yes, it’s been a regular appropriation even though it’s a one-time, but for this biennium, 
we did not receive any money for vehicle purchase. This will be enough for 12 vehicles 
because we have trade-ins. Under the one-time funding items, the 5th line down it says, “adds 
funding for Criminal Justice Information Sharing projects”. That really should be an ongoing 
appropriation rather than a one-time. I accidentally requested it as a one-time, but it should 
be ongoing. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: I don’t have a problem with that, but please justify why. 
 
Roll: We have 3 different parts of systems that have been written that improve the whole 
criminal justice information sharing system. One of those is portal improvements where we 
have other state agency systems coming into our system. They make changes on their 
systems, so we have to make changes on our portal interface in order for us to continue to 
receive the information from them so that it’s shared state-wide. That’s an example of one. 
It’s ongoing; it seems like every biennium we have at least a few if not several systems that 
get changed in some way that interfaces with our system.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: So you act as the clearing house for that information. It comes into you 
and goes out. Is that up $240,000 or is it always a static amount of $140,000 a biennium 
expended as needed to make the changes? 
 
Roll: It would be $140,000 and as I said, that’s comprised of 3 different projects. One that’s 
always going to be there with portal improvement and the other two are to maintain the 
systems that were written this biennium. It would be $140,000 and if we didn’t need to spend 
that much, we wouldn’t. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: I have no problem with that. Any other concerns or suggestions? 
 
(18:45) Stenehjem: I want to expand on the CJIS operation. Once this is fully implemented, 
it will be a well-organized system of information. For example, a policeman out on a beat 
sees a car with a license number, he can check in and find out if that owner has a domestic 
violence protection order. Is there a warrant? Is the person on probation? Has he skipped a 
court appearance he’s supposed to be at? Does he have a concealed weapons license? The 
whole thing. Likewise the courts and states attorneys will be able to get that same kind of 
information. It will be state of the art top notch stuff and a long term project. It will really help 
for public safety. That’s why we’ve invested for years in making sure that we keep marching 
along to get it all done. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: Section 5 on page 2, that’s been done every time.  
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Roll: Correct. In fact, as you approve the budget, there are a number of different things that 
come out of the AG refund fund. There are 3 FTEs in BCI that are funded: an organized crime 
agent and two administrative assistants. It also includes some IT projects that we continue 
to fund. That’s why we need the AG refund fund carryover. It’s already included in the budget 
you have before you; we need to be able to carry it over to make that happen. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: Section 8- do we need that one if we do that one?  
 
Roll: I don’t believe we added that section last session, I think it was added somewhere by 
some other entity. We just need the additional income appropriation section. It was put in the 
bill last session. The $250,000 section is the one we need.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: We’ll go with section 8 then. 
 
Roll: Section 9 was added last session because what was happening was criminal history 
record checks were being authorized, but the legislation didn’t say who was paying for it. 
Since our office is pretty bare-bones, it wasn’t something that we could just eat the cost of. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: what do you charge now?  
 
Stenehjem: It depends on whether you’re asking for a state check or a federal record check. 
The state check is $25 and in addition if you do a nation-wide triple I, that costs another $20. 
We hire people to do the record checks, but if you ask for federal record checks, you have to 
pay them as well. Someone has to pay them that additional $20. That’s why that section is 
there. 
 
Roll: We charge everyone the same rate except for volunteers. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: but there’s no cap with a reasonable fee; that’s what you decide is a 
reasonable fee. 
 
Roll: Correct, and the reason for that is if the FBI fee goes up, then we will have to pay more 
to the FBI to get the fingerprint-based record check. We’re not making money there, it all 
goes to the general fund. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: When we do that for example with our USA hockey team and they pay 
the fees, are you subcontracting that service to some other entity or do you have staff in 
house that are doing that? 
 
Stenehjem: We have staff, and it’s a lot of them. It takes one person for every 2,000 
background checks that we do. We watch carefully to see how many bills you have entering 
the session to require more background checks. We’ll be fine this year, but we do 47,000 a 
year through BCI. We have an interconnect with the FBI. 
 
Senator Grabinger: With the fees, do you need language in here so that you can adjust the 
fees as needed or you’re okay with the fees as explained now? 
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Roll: Right now we set that administratively. We’re not asking for it to be set at a certain 
amount; we just need the ability to charge someone. If it doesn’t specify in legislation, who is 
supposed to pay for the criminal record check? 
 
(27) Senator Sorvaag: The governor recommended this too. I don’t have a problem with 
that; we’ll move that over.  
 
Roll: With section 9, when Marsy’s law passed, we projected that it was going to be a 3-year 
project. We budgeted all the money for this biennium, and now we’re asking for carry over 
authority into next biennium to finalize the project. 
 
Senator Grabinger: Is this is the SAVIN? Where are we at with that?  
 
Stenehjem: We’re doing quite well with it. We have the juvenile courts, municipal courts and 
the jails in line with it. 
 
Senator Grabinger: The intent was we were going to save the cities and counties from 
having to hire the people for Marsy’s law. Have we reached that point? 
 
Stenehjem: It’s not done, and some of the best features of it are not yet online. However, 
they are on track from what we’ve anticipated. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: You had asked the local entities to provide funding for this as well. 
That’s part of the unexpected special fund appropriation. Is there a funding already included 
in that and you won’t ask for any more from them either? 
 
Stenehjem: The state put in $500,000 and the counties and cities agreed to put in $325,000. 
They have all paid their share; they’re all up to date now. It’s a matter of completing the 
software work. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: Section 10 is carryover from the human trafficking grant. 
  
Roll: Correct. I handed out a sheet of the AG budget issues (see attachment #2). In that 
box, we’re asking for carryover for the concealed weapon license rewrite. We are not meeting 
the schedule we’ve anticipated, so we’d like to carry over money that is in this biennium into 
next biennium. It would be moving 2017-19 general fund money that was appropriated for 
this project, into next biennium. It wouldn’t be an increase; it would be just transferring that 
over.   
 
Senator Sorvaag: We’ve talked about section 11 and section 12. That’s 2057 and 2159; that 
will be the language to make them part of an ongoing appropriations going forward. Section 
13 is the $400,000 for the gaming. That could change as we go along. 
 
(32) Kinnischtzke: Regarding the Medicaid fraud unit- I’m looking at Kathy’s spreadsheet 
and want to clarify. Based on the conversation, the decision sounds like going with 7 FTE as 
opposed to 5, so I will rely on Kathy’s numbers. In the original request in the executive budget, 
there was a portion that was general fund because of the percentage allocation. Looking in 
Kathy’s spreadsheet, I see the total of $1.8M all federal funding. 
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Roll: so it should be 10%. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: and those positions aren’t all the same 
 
Roll: There’s 2 investigators, 2 attorneys, 2 auditors and 1 administrative assistant.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: You want 2 attorneys that weren’t in the governor’s budget and 1 DNA 
forensic scientist. That’s what more you’re looking for at this point, correct? You never had 
the DNA scientist did you? 
 
Roll: We did. That was one of the cuts we took last biennium. We found we’re having to pay 
overtime right now because we’ve gotten so far behind in terms of processing the DNA 
evidence. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: Is there any way that can be a contracted position? 
 
Robin Quinn, Crime Lab Director 
 
Quinn: Outsourcing is a lot of work for the lab and a lot of extra money because then we’re 
involved. The evidence comes in, we have to ship it out, then it comes back in and we have 
to do a 100% review of all those cases. In order to keep it in house it’s actually quicker. Right 
now we have 5 DNA analysts working overtime to try to keep up with the amount of cases 
we’re getting. 
 
Stenehjem: It’s the biggest suggestion that I hear from sheriffs, prosecutors and cops. It 
takes so long to get a good DNA match. Sometimes they’re waiting to make an arrest. These 
are people who could be out on the street committing similar crimes and it takes almost 5 or 
6 months to get the DNA done. It’s getting better, but we’re seeing the lag time is getting 
longer. We asked a number of the scientists to work overtime and they agreed, but it’s not 
sustainable. 
 
Quinn: As far as the technology is concerned, it’s amazing right now. We’re getting a lot of 
property crimes, and because of the science and the technology, the analysis and results 
takes a lot longer because there’s huge mixtures. We have two or three people that we have 
to try to discern from this mixture to determine who actually did the crime. That’s where the 
time is involved.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: The salary is about $225,000 approximately and that’s general funds? 
 
Roll: Correct.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: I’m okay with putting one in. We will add a DNA scientist. Let’s go to the 
2 agents for the Social Security fraud. Please explain. 
 
Stenehjem: Last fall I had a visit with some of the folks that were doing these investigations 
on social security fraud in North Dakota. They said that if they come in with a program, they 
will pay 100% for investigators to partner with the federal investigators. In November they 
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brought a team who set up shop here and started out with a case. It was a fellow here in 
North Dakota whose mother died 8 years ago. He continued to collect her social security long 
after she died. He himself was on SSDI, disability income, though he had a full time job as a 
truck driver and was defrauding the federal government and the state of ND out of $80,000 
or more. There’s several other examples brought forth like that. Then the investigator said 
he went and visited the social security offices around the state, all of whom said they had a 
stack of cases of people that we suspect are defrauding the government, but don’t have 
anybody to turn it over to. The program the feds have is that they will come in and will fund 
100% of whatever investigators we can contribute to the team. It’s a good investment; it costs 
us nothing. There is a share of some of those funds that are recouped that are North Dakota 
dollars. We could conceivably get those back. Not only will it not cost us anything, we will 
probably make money. 
 
(41) Senator Bekkedahl: The share that is North Dakota money- would that be because of 
Medicaid fraud? 
 
Stenehjem: Not Medicaid because that’s provider fraud. It would be WIC or any of the 
programs like that where we have a match. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: When somebody dies, how does someone still collect? 
 
Stenehjem: I don’t know how it happened either, but he only got caught because he went in 
to change his mother’s address because it was too much trouble for him to open up her mail. 
Why that happens, I don’t know. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: It’s something that needs to be done and it would bring benefit to the 
public. I just don’t understand how anyone gets away with it. Blame the person for doing it, 
but also blame the system for allowing it to happen in the first place. 
 
Stenehjem: I agree; I don’t know what went wrong in that case. There are other examples 
too that you would expect they catch but they don’t. hey just don’t catch it. Without these 
folks here doing the investigation, there’s nobody around to prosecute the offense, and these 
are criminal offenses. 
 
Senator Grabinger: I’m concerned that we get more employees, the government walks 
away and we have these employees from then on. I want to be careful with that, but I like the 
idea; we’re not out anything. 
 
Stenehjem: I had that same question for the guys who came in. The program has been in 
existence for almost 3 decades. They’ve never asked any state to pay anything. It’s been 
several billion dollars that they’ve if not recouped, at least don’t have to pay on an ongoing 
basis. It’s never happened that they pulled the funding because it’s for the large part, for their 
benefit not ours.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: and they don’t want the FTEs themselves? 
 
Stenehjem: Right, but they do have FTEs they’re putting here. 
 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
SB 2003 Attorney General subcommittee 
February 12, 2019 
Page 9  
   

Senator Bekkedahl: Where is the chain of command for these positions?  
 
Stenehjem: They’ll be in our office. Our people will be in my chain of command; the feds 
don’t work for me. The state’s and US attorney will prosecute. They have a protocol of the 
level that you have to get to before it makes it a federal case. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: You said there needs to be a change in North Dakota law. 
 
Stenehjem: I don’t think there needs to be. There are statutes that explicitly says that if you 
make a false statement for the purpose of obtaining government benefits, it’s a criminal 
offense. We don’t need to change anything.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: I don’t have a problem with it. If they’re defrauding the system, they’re 
hurting all of us. This will be a good few years with Medicaid fraud and this one both because 
the idea is that they pay for themselves; it’s not only the federal dollars, but the recover 
dollars. The only item I have left is the 2 attorneys that I didn’t realize you were going to ask 
for.  
 
Roll: I didn’t realize that the Senate intended to take all of the executive recommendation 
changes. There is an attorney and a paralegal that would be cut. We have already cut one 
last biennium and another one this biennium. This would be a third position that would be 
cut. The paralegal is actually more in our civil litigation division, and they are constantly busy 
with cases. The paralegals do a lot of the research for the attorneys so they can do the higher 
level work that is needed being in court. The money to pay for the attorney and the paralegal 
is from what we bill state agencies, so it’s not general fund monies. It’s other fund monies 
from our operating fund. 
 
Stenehjem: We weren’t sure how to treat that request for pulled reductions that the governor 
gave to us. We didn’t know what position the legislature was taking on then either. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: We try to look at most things in each agency. I’m looking at these 
numbers. We’re doing good in general fund, an increase in last biennium. I don’t see that as 
a problem on an agency your size, but we’re going up, before anything we did today by the 
numbers on this sheet, it’s about $6.7M. With everything we’ve done today, we’re probably 
increasing your special fund size with changes to base level funding. 
 
Roll: The items that are shown under 2019-21 ongoing funding changes, those are all 
executive recommendation changes that were made. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: The middle column. These were my suggestions coming into this that 
we’ve worked through. We were about $6.7M and $880,000 general fund changes to the 
base level funding. We’ve been making these changes.  
 
Senator Grabinger: This attorney and paralegal are already on staff right now and they 
would lose their jobs? 
 
Roll: Correct. 
 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
SB 2003 Attorney General subcommittee 
February 12, 2019 
Page 10  
   

Senator Sorvaag: Did we fund all of your FTEs last time? 
 
Roll: The deputy fire marshal is the one we’re requesting this time. In addition to that, in 
order to meet the general fund cut, one legal division underfunded a position so they won’t 
be able to fill it from 12-14 months.   
 
Senator Sorvaag: What is the cost of these 2 with operating approximately? 
 
Roll: It shows $272,399, but I need to check on that to be sure. 
 
Kinnischtzke: That $272,000 is taken from the agencies submitted budget from Kathy’s 
CRO1 reports for those positions. You are looking at the correct line for the removing 6 FTE 
positions. The amount that Kathy’s looking at is in that estimated income other funds line. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: For both positions and their operating costs? 
 
Roll: That’s what it shows, but it seems low to me. 
 
Senator Grabinger: It’s other funds, it’s not general funds. Those two are already in staff. I 
don’t see anything wrong with it. 
 
Stenehjem: We have a lot of major pieces of litigation going on that we’re defending from 
the election law to abortion bills. What happens when we can’t handle the work, we have to 
hire outside counsel. That’s more expensive than putting it into our office with our lawyers 
doing these things and not paying market rate for legal services. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: Part of the feeling is so it can go with the ebb and flow of your work, but 
you’re saying your work flows in one direction. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I agree with Senator Grabinger. If they’re already on staff and it sounds 
like the workload is there, I would agree to both positions. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: I’ll join and we’ll make it a consensus.  
 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Motions for changes to base level funding be accepted and 
drafted up by legislative council staff. 
Senator Grabinger: Seconded the motion.  
 
 
A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes: __3___   No: __0___   Absent: __0___.  
 
 
Senator Sorvaag will present to the committee.  
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      Committee Clerk: Rose Laning and Alicia Larsgaard 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the attorney 
general. 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony attached # 1 – 2. 

 
Legislative Council: Levi Kinnischtzke  
OMB: Becky Deichert  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Called the committee to order on SB 2003. Senator Bekkedahl and 
Senator Grabinger were also present. He handed out amendment 19.0216.01001 – 
attached # 1.  
 
Levi Kinnischtzke handed out the worksheet Base Level Funding Changes – attached 
# 2. 
(Committee is reading through the worksheet) 
 
Kathy Roll: There are two line items here that relate to the Medicaid fraud control unit. The 
first one is adding the seven positions. The second adds operating capital expenses. It looks 
like all the money is there to fund that unit.  
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: It is correct. This should exactly match what the amendment will show.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: That together comes up to the $1.8 M. I think this is everything we agreed 
to. Look it over and see if you have any comments.  
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: After our meeting adjourned yesterday, I had a discussion with Kathy. It 
was brought to my attention that an exemption for the human trafficking victim grants from 
last biennium were not needed. I have not included that in the amendment. Based on prior 
subcommittee discussion, the last direction was to include an exemption on that. That 
Attorney General’s office anticipates spending the entire amount that is appropriated for 17-
19. They will not have any carry over or the need for an exemption. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: So it’s out of the amendment? (answer – Correct.) Keep studying this and 
we want to finish it today.    
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(6:45) Senator Sorvaag: Under section 9, the amount is 1.625? 
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: That is correct. There is $125,000 in the Attorney General’s base from 
the appropriation from the 17-19 biennium. The additional amount that the subcommittee is 
adding, is $1.5M for a total of $1.625.   
 
(8:24) Senator Bekkedahl: What am I missing in the Human trafficking $1.625 M. I thought 
when we looked last, it was $1.5M.     There’s $125,000 
 
Senator Sorvaag: I just asked that question. There’s $125,000. He totaled them together.  
 
Kathy Roll: Is the retirement increase shown in with the health insurance increase?  
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: Yes. When Legislative Council calculates the salaries for every FTE, 
included in the salaries are fringe benefit increase for FICA and retirement. Kathy’s question 
is that retirement calculation is included in the salaried and the health insurance increase in 
the compensation package. It is. It’s separate from the retirement increase proposal that was 
in the executive budget.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Section 12 – Under the concealed weapon re-write project exemption, 
that was part of this page discussion. We never had a separate section for it but now you 
have placed it in a separate section correct?  
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: That is correct.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: These numbers that are changes to the base level are correct. We are 
up General Fund of $1.2 M and special funds of $8M for total of $9M. That is one of the more 
important lines for us to consider considering we are adding 7 employees. Is there any 
concern from the Attorney General’s Office?  
 
Kathy Roll: I’m not seeing anything at this time.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: We’re going to move to approve this.  
 
Senator Grabinger: Moved to accept the changes made in SB 2003.   
Senator Bekkedahl: Seconded.  
Voice Vote carried.  
 
 
Senator Grabinger: Moved amendment 19.0216.01001. 
Senator Bekkedahl: Seconded. 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken. 3 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.  
Motion carried.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Adjourned the committee.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
This is a vote on the Attorney General’s budget and was moved Do Pass as Amended.  
 

Minutes:                                                 Amendment 19.0216.01001 

 
Legislative Council: Alex Cronquist & Levi Kinnischtzke  
OMB: Becky Keller  
 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Called the committee to order on SB 2003.  
 
Senator Sorvaag handed out amendment 19.0216.01001 and explained it. 
Senator Grabinger: seconded the motion. 
Voice Vote carried.  
 
 
Senator Sorvaag: moved Do Pass on SB 2003 as Amended. 
Senator Grabinger: seconded the motion.   
 

A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes:__14___   No:___0__   Absent:__0___.  
  
Senator Sorvaag: will carry the bill.  
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